

Make Your Publications Visible.

A Service of



Leibniz-Informationszentrum Wirtschaft Leibniz Information Centre

DIW Berlin / SOEP (Ed.)

Research Report SOEP-Core v33.1 - \$HBRUTTO

SOEP Survey Papers, No. 488

Provided in Cooperation with:

German Institute for Economic Research (DIW Berlin)

Suggested Citation: DIW Berlin / SOEP (Ed.) (2018): SOEP-Core v33.1 - \$HBRUTTO, SOEP Survey Papers, No. 488, Deutsches Institut für Wirtschaftsforschung (DIW), Berlin

This Version is available at: https://hdl.handle.net/10419/176787

Standard-Nutzungsbedingungen:

Die Dokumente auf EconStor dürfen zu eigenen wissenschaftlichen Zwecken und zum Privatgebrauch gespeichert und kopiert werden.

Sie dürfen die Dokumente nicht für öffentliche oder kommerzielle Zwecke vervielfältigen, öffentlich ausstellen, öffentlich zugänglich machen, vertreiben oder anderweitig nutzen.

Sofern die Verfasser die Dokumente unter Open-Content-Lizenzen (insbesondere CC-Lizenzen) zur Verfügung gestellt haben sollten, gelten abweichend von diesen Nutzungsbedingungen die in der dort genannten Lizenz gewährten Nutzungsrechte.



http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-sa/4.0/

Terms of use:

Documents in EconStor may be saved and copied for your personal and scholarly purposes.

You are not to copy documents for public or commercial purposes, to exhibit the documents publicly, to make them publicly available on the internet, or to distribute or otherwise use the documents in public.

If the documents have been made available under an Open Content Licence (especially Creative Commons Licences), you may exercise further usage rights as specified in the indicated licence.





488

SOEP Survey Papers

Series D - Variable Descriptions and Coding

SOEP - The German Socio-Economic Panel study at DIW Berlin

2018

SOEP-Core v33.1 - \$HBRUTTO

SOEP Group



Running since 1984, the German Socio-Economic Panel study (SOEP) is a wide-ranging representative longitudinal study of private households, located at the German Institute for Economic Research, DIW Berlin.

The aim of the SOEP Survey Papers Series is to thoroughly document the survey's data collection and data processing. The SOEP Survey Papers is comprised of the following series:

Series A – Survey Instruments (Erhebungsinstrumente)

Series B – Survey Reports (Methodenberichte)

Series C - Data Documentation (Datendokumentationen)

Series D - Variable Descriptions and Coding

Series E – SOEPmonitors

Series F – SOEP Newsletters

Series G - General Issues and Teaching Materials

The SOEP Survey Papers are available at http://www.diw.de/soepsurveypapers

Editors:

Dr. Jan Goebel, DIW Berlin

Prof. Dr. Martin Kroh, DIW Berlin and Humboldt Universität Berlin

Prof. Dr. Carsten Schröder, DIW Berlin and Freie Universität Berlin

Prof. Dr. Jürgen Schupp, DIW Berlin and Freie Universität Berlin

Please cite this paper as follows:

SOEP Group, 2018. SOEP-Core v33.1 – \$HBRUTTO. SOEP Survey Papers 488: Series D – Variable Descriptions and Coding. Berlin: DIW Berlin/SOEP



This work is licensed under a Creative Commons Attribution-ShareAlike 4.0 International License.

© 2018 by SOEP

ISSN: 2193-5580 (online)

DIW Berlin

German Socio-Economic Panel (SOEP)

Mohrenstr. 58 10117 Berlin Germany soeppapers@diw.de



SOEP-Core v33.1 – \$HBRUTTO

SOEP Group

2018

The files \$HBRUTTO are part of a collection, which is released with doi:10.5684/soep.v33.1.

Contents

1	Overview	4
2	Household Hierarchy Variables hhnr – Original Household Number [generic]	4 4 4
3	Panel Structure Variables sample1 – Subsample Identifier TNS-Infratest [generic]	4 4
4	Regional Variables \$sampreg - Current Sample Region [generic]	5 6 6 6 7
5	Information on Persons in the Household \$hhgr - Number Of Persons In Household [generic]	8 8 8 8
6	Date of Last Contact with Household \$datumtg - Day Household Last Contacted [generic]	9 9 9 10
7	Adress and Contact Information \$htyp - Household Type [generic]	10 10 10 11 11 11
8	Interview Information \$intza - Number Of Interviewers [generic] intid - Interviewer ID [generic] intid1 - ID First Interviewer \$intk - Interviewer Contacts [generic] \$telk1 - Survey Telephone Contact [generic] \$telk2 - Re-Survey Telephone Contact [generic] \$schk - Contact By Mail [generic] \$capierg - CAPI-Result [generic] \$catierg - CATI-result [generic] \$cawierg - CAWI-Result [generic]	12 12 12 12 13 13 13 14 14 14

9	Work Form Information	15
	\$split – Starting Work Form [generic]	15
	\$hform1 – Survey Type Main Survey [generic]	15
	\$herg1 – Survey Result Main Survey [generic]	16
	\$hforms – Result Of Survey [generic]	16
	\$hergs – Household Survey Result, One Digit [generic]	17
	\$hstu – Household Steps Of Survey [generic]	17
	bghergs_erw - [Refug]Erweitertes Bearbeitungsergebnis Schluss	18
	bghfort – Fortschreibung von Daten	18
10	Incentive and Additional Information	19
	\$inckontr - Incentivized Households [generic]	19
	\$hand – Special Case, See Address Log [generic]	19

1 Overview

\$HBRUTTO covers all households, who were successfully interviewed for the first time in wave \$ or were contacted for the purpose of being interviewed again in wave \$.

The data sets provide gross cross-sectional information on all SOEP households' interviews as well as their positions in the panel frame work. Therefore, the variables HHNR, HHNRAKT, \$HHNR, SAMPLE1, and SOURCE are included in the datasets.

The data sets also contain information on:

- The household's region
- Gross information on the persons living in the household
- · The date of the last interview
- Adress and contact information
- The date of the last interview
- Interviewer and contact information
- Work form information
- Incentive and additional information

All documented distributions relate to Version31 of the SOEP data (2014).

2 Household Hierarchy Variables

Variables to indentify the household in the hierarhy:

hhnr - Original Household Number [generic]

Identifier for the household on the highest hierarchy level to which the household can be traced back to. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

hhnrakt - Current Wave HH Number (=BGHHNR) [generic]

Identifier for the household (=\$HHNR) at the time of the interview. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

\$hhnr - Current Wave HH Number (=HHNRAKT) [generic]

Identifier for the household (=HHNRAKT) at the time of the interview. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

3 Panel Structure Variables

Variabels to indentify the household in the panel structure:

sample 1 - Subsample Identifier TNS-Infratest [generic]

1	[1] A German HH Head, West	1887
2	[2] B1 Turkish HH Head	97
3	[3] B2 Yugoslav HH Head	61
4	[4] B3 Greek HH Head	39

5	[5] B4 Italian HH Head	76
6	[6] B5 Spanish HH Head	27
7	[7] C German HH Head, East	1222
8	[8] D1 Immigrant W. Germany	114
9	[9] D2 Immigrant W. Germany	96
10	[10] E1 Refrehment (PAPI)	45
11	[11] E2 Refrehment (CAPI)	38
12	[12] F1 Refreshment (Innovation)	2402
13	[13] F2 Refreshment, Additional Foreigner Addresses	42
14	[14] G1 High Income (PreTest)	0
15	[15] G2 High Income	675
	(8 rows omitted)	7344
30	[30] M3 2016 Refugee (2013-2015)	1698
31	[31] M4 2016 Refugee/Families (2013-2015)	1638
60	[60] L2/3 FiD Screening, Low Income	781
61	[61] L2/3 FiD Screening, Single Parent	779
62	[62] L2/3 FiD Screening, Families with Several Children	917
63	[63] L1 FiD Birth Cohort 2007	323
64	[64] L1 FiD Birth Cohort 2008	332
65	[65] L1 FiD Birth Cohort 2009	311
66	[66] L1 FiD Birth Cohort 2010	325
-1	[-1] No Answer	0
-2	[-2] Does not apply	0
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	0
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

Unchanging subsample information: for example, a household from Sample C would retain this original sample number (the sample in which the household first entered SOEP) even after moving to West Germany (see also the comments on the variables \$SAMPREG). [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

4 Regional Variables

Information on the household's location:

\$sampreg - Current Sample Region [generic]

1	[1] West Germany	16978
2	[2] East Germany	4291
-1	[-1] No Answer	0
-2	[-2] Does not apply	0
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	0
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

This variable indicates the household's regional location. It shows whether the household is located in the territory of the former GDR or FDR. Since 2009, it is not longer possible to

distinguish between East and West in the state of Berlin due to a reform of district borders. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

\$bula - Federal State [generic]

1	[1] Schleswig-Holstein	798
2	[2] Hamburg	395
3	[3] Lower Saxony	1942
4	[4] Bremen	171
5	[5] North Rhine-Westphalia	4248
6	[6] Hesse	1520
7	[7] Rhineland-Palatinate	1005
8	[8] Baden-Wuerttemberg	2556
9	[9] Bavaria	3477
10	[10] Saarland	257
11	[11] Berlin	937
12	[12] Brandenburg	852
13	[13] Mecklenburg-West Pomerania	446
14	[14] Saxony	1171
15	[15] Saxony-Anhalt	692
16	[16] Thuringia	740
-1	[-1] No Answer	0
-2	[-2] Does not apply	62
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	0
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

This variable indicates the federal state (Bundesland), in which the household is currently located. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

\$regtyp - Spatial category by BBSR [generic]

1	[1] Urban regions	14175
2	[2] Regions undergoing urbanization	7032
-1	[-1] No Answer	62
-2	[-2] Does not apply	0
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	0
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

This variable indicates the household's regional settlement structure/ spatial character. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

\$wum1 - Residential Area 1: Type Of House [generic]

1	[1] Farm House	439
2	[2] 1-2 Fam. House	5385

3	[3] 1-2 Fam. Rowhouse	2881
4	[4] Apt. In 3-4 Unit Bldg.	2339
5	[5] Apt. In 5-8 Unit Bldg.	4457
6	[6] Apt. In 9+ Unit Bldg.	3472
7	[7] High Rise	407
8	[8] Other Building	2
9	[9] No Answer	0
-1	[-1] No Answer	1887
-2	[-2] Does not apply	0
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	0
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

This variable indicates the real estate type of the household's dwelling. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

\$wum2 - Residential Area 2: Private,Institution [generic]

1	[1] Private Household	17758
2	[2] Youth Resid. Dorm	5
3	[3] Student Dormitory	44
4	[4] Workers Dormitory	17
5	[5] Old-Age Home	27
6	[6] Old Peoples Home	34
7	[7] Other	33
8	[8] hotel	15
9	[9] No Answer	0
-1	[-1] No Answer	0
-2	[-2] Does not apply	3336
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	0
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

This variable indicates whether the household is a privat residence or part of an institution. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

\$wum3 - Residential Area 3: Rental Housing [generic]

1	[1] Res. Area Old.	10298
2	[2] Res. Area New.	4775
3	[3] Mixed Resid., Comm Area	5011
4	[4] Commercial Area	123
5	[5] Industrial Area	378
6	[6] Other	0
9	[9] No Answer	0
-1	[-1] No Answer	684
-2	[-2] Does not apply	0
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0

-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	0
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

This variable indicates the household's quarter type. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

5 Information on Persons in the Household

Information on the household's inhabitants:

\$hhgr - Number Of Persons In Household [generic]

0	172
1	5619
2	6267
3	3077
4	3234
5	1737
6	693
7	279
8	105
9	48
10	25
11	7
12	4
13	2

This variable indicates the number of persons currently living in the household. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

\$hpmax - Highest Person Number In Household [generic]

This variable indicates the number of persons, who ever lived in the household during the survey period. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

bqbefhpmax - Person Surveyed

```
0
         172
1
       6775
2
      11207
3
       2022
4
         818
5
         214
6
         45
7
          15
8
           1
```

bgpteil - Respondent In Household

0	3344
1	8446
2	7778
3	1222
4	382
5	75
6	14
7	7
8	1

6 Date of Last Contact with Household

Information on the last contact with the household:

\$datumtg - Day Household Last Contacted [generic]

0	[0] No Contact	157
-1	[-1] No Answer	0
-2	[-2] Does not apply	0
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	0
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

Day of last interview [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

\$datummo - Month Household Last Contacted [generic]

0	[0] No Contact	157
1	[1] January	224
2	[2] February	4605
3	[3] March	3319
4	[4] April	2716
5	[5] May	2359
6	[6] June	1143
7	[7] July	1130
8	[8] August	1924
9	[9] September	1262
10	[10] October	711
11	[11] November	1071
12	[12] December	648
-1	[-1] No Answer	0
-2	[-2] Does not apply	0
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	0
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

Month of last interview [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

\$datumy - Calendar Year Of Interview [generic]

Year of last interview [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

7 Adress and Contact Information

Information on the household's adress:

\$htyp - Household Type [generic]

-		15620
I	[1] Old HH, Same Address	15639
2	[2] Old HH, New Address	1362
3	[3] Old HH, Temp.Mis.	176
4	[4] New HH, Temp.Mis.	152
5	[5] New Household	3940
-1	[-1] No Answer	0
-2	[-2] Does not apply	0
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	0
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

This variable indicates whether a household moved since the last interview [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

\$hader - Household Address Check [generic]

1	[1] Moved Address Obtained	1642
2	[2] Moved, No New Address	45
3	[3] Address, HH Not Found	90
4	[4] Address Unknown	20
5	[5] Moved To Foreign Country	62
6	[6] Has Died	71
7	[7] HH Dissolved	39
8	[8] Info. Blocked	4
-1	[-1] No Answer	0
-2	[-2] Does not apply	19296
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	0
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

\$HADER shows whether or not the adress of a household, who is founded or has moved in the current wave, was successfully obtained. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

\$hadq - Source Of Information [generic]

1	[1] Interviewer	705
2	[2] Mail	369
3	[3] Resident Registrar	775
4	[4] Target Person	124
-1	[-1] No Answer	0
-2	[-2] Does not apply	19296
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	0
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

\$HADQ indicates the source for the information in \$HADER (see above). [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

\$htel - Telephone [generic]

1	[1] Telephone Known	17557
-1	[-1] No Answer	0
-2	[-2] Does not apply	3712
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	0
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

This variable indicates whether the household's telephone number is known or not. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

\$wein - Wave When Moved To This Address [generic]

This variable indicates the year since the household has its current adress. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

\$email - HH With Email Access [generic]

1	[1] Email address Known	6789
-1	[-1] No Answer	0
-2	[-2] Does not apply	14480
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	0
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

This variable indicates whether the household's E-mail adress is known or not. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

8 Interview Information

\$intza - Number Of Interviewers [generic]

0	[0] No Interviewer	3075
1	[1] 1 Interviewer	17819
2	[2] 2 Interviewers	371
3	[3] 3 Interviewers	4
-1	[-1] No Answer	0
-2	[-2] Does not apply	0
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	0
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

This variable indicates the number of interviewers, who surveyed the household during the current wave. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

intid - Interviewer ID [generic]

The Interviewer ID in the current wave. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

intid1 - ID First Interviewer

The ID of the interviewer, who interviewed the household first in the current survey wave.

\$intk - Interviewer Contacts [generic]

0	[0] 0 Interviews	3075
1	[1] 1 Interview Contact	2341
2	[2] 2 Interview Contacts	5771
3	[3] 3 Interview Contacts	3862
4	[4] 4 Interview Contacts	2384
5	[5] 5 Interview Contacts	1360
6	[6] 6 Interview Contacts	829
7	[7] 7 Interview Contacts	529
8	[8] 8 Interview Contacts	345
9	[9] 9+ Interview Contacts	773
-1	[-1] No Answer	0
-2	[-2] Does not apply	0
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	0
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

Number of interviewer contacts during the current survey wave. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

\$telk1 - Survey Telephone Contact [generic]

0	[0] Tried Telephone	365
1	[1] Phone No Contact	340
2	[2] Phone Cleared Up	1838
3	[3] Written, By Mail	81
-1	[-1] No Answer	0
-2	[-2] Does not apply	18645
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	0
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

This variable shows the result of a telephone interview attempt for households who were unsuccessfully covered by an interviewer. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

\$telk2 - Re-Survey Telephone Contact [generic]

0	[0] No Phone Obtained	0
1	[1] No Makeup Intv.	27
2	[2] Makeup Intv. Ok	15
-1	[-1] No Answer	0
-2	[-2] Does not apply	21227
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	0
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

This variable shows the result of a post-interview resurvey attempt, in cases of missing informations in the houshold and/or personal questionnaire. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

\$schk - Contact By Mail [generic]

1	[1] Cover Letter-No Response	1061
2	[2] Cover Letter-With Response	1676
-1	[-1] No Answer	0
-2	[-2] Does not apply	18532
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	0
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

This variable shows the result of a mail interview attempt for households who are interviewed in this form. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

\$capierg - CAPI-Result [generic]

1	[1] Successful	1037
2	[2] HH Not Successful	468
-1	[-1] No Answer	0
-2	[-2] Does not apply	972
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	18792
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

[This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

\$catierg - CATI-result [generic]

1 [1] TP: Participated	97
2 [2] TP: Intention to Participate	713
3 [3] TP: Not Sure	48
4 [4] TP: Requests Login Data	45
5 [5] TP: No Internet	2
6 [6] TP: Wish for CAPI	24
7 [7] TP: Refusal	39
8 [8] TP: Unreachable	95
9 [9] Wrong Telephone Number	93
-1 [-1] No Answer	0
-2 [-2] Does not apply	121
-3 [-3] Answer improbable	0
-4 [-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5 [-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire 187	'92
-6 [-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

[This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

\$cawierg - CAWI-Result [generic]

1	[1] Successful	767
2	[2] HH Not Successful	905
-1	[-1] No Answer	0
-2	[-2] Does not apply	805
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	18792
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

[This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

9 Work Form Information

\$split - Starting Work Form [generic]

10	[10] successful work by interviewer	13000 0
11	[11] Interviewer East	
12	[12] first work (sample I) after non-response sample	
13	[13] Participant during last wave, in CAWI Processing	1
19	[19] HH Not Processed, Under Income Lev	0
61	[61] Tel. Survey, Temp. Missing	72
62	[62] CAWI, Temp. Missing	185
63	[63] Temporary missing, last year CAWI Processing	143
66	[66] Tel. Survey, Temp. Missing, Written	931
68	[68] Miss., But Interviewed	4
69	[69] Interview. Survey, Code 61,66,81,89.	0
70	[70] Tel. Survey, Proxy Intv.	29
75	[75] No Survey, Moved Abroad	13
76	[76] No Survey, Died	11
77	[77] No Survey, Moved To Panel HH	0
78	[78] No Survey, Refused	134
81	[81] Tel. Survey, Tel., Written Contact	809
82	[82] CAWI, Prev. Yr. processed	273
83	[83] Participating last year using CAWI	985
88	[88] Tel. Survey, Tel. Interview	0
89	[89] Written Survey, Refused Writing	739
90	[90] Surveyed With Div., New HH	3940
99	[99] New HH, Fieldwork in initial shipm	0
-1	[-1] No Answer	0
-2	[-2] Does not apply	0
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	0
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

This variable indicates the starting work form for the household. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

\$hform1 - Survey Type Main Survey [generic]

[1] Only Interviewer	4937
[2] Interview After Pos. Tel	0
[3] Written After Pos. Tel.	802
[4] Negative Tel. Contact	255
[5] Phone Interview	2
[6] Written-Postal	931
[7] Mixed Type	0
[8] No Interview	157
[9] CAPI	12513
[10] CAWI	1672
[-1] No Answer	0
	 [2] Interview After Pos. Tel [3] Written After Pos. Tel. [4] Negative Tel. Contact [5] Phone Interview [6] Written-Postal [7] Mixed Type [8] No Interview [9] CAPI [10] CAWI

-2	[-2] Does not apply	0
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	0
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

This variable indicates the household's main work form/ survey type. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

\$herg1 - Survey Result Main Survey [generic]

	22.40
[O] Partly Successful	2248
[1] Fully Successful	15166
[2] Unsuccessful At The Time	394
[3] Unwilling Then	1484
[4] Final Refusal	1535
[5] Moved Out Of Germany	60
[6] Has Died	69
[7] HH Dissolved	39
[8] HH Not Reached	145
[9] address of hh defintely not found	129
[99] HH Under Income Level (G)	0
[-1] No Answer	0
[-2] Does not apply	0
[-3] Answer improbable	0
[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	0
[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0
	[2] Unsuccessful At The Time [3] Unwilling Then [4] Final Refusal [5] Moved Out Of Germany [6] Has Died [7] HH Dissolved [8] HH Not Reached [9] address of hh defintely not found [99] HH Under Income Level (G) [-1] No Answer [-2] Does not apply [-3] Answer improbable [-4] Inadmissible multiple response [-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire

This variable indicates the household's main survey result. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

\$hforms - Result Of Survey [generic]

1	[1] Only Interviewer	5236
2	[2] Interview After Pos. Tel	0
3	[3] Written After Pos. Telephone	793
4	[4] Negative Tel. Contact	172
5	[5] Phone Interview	2
6	[6] Written-Postal	1072
7	[7] Mixed Type	0
8	[8] No Interview	157
9	[9] CAPI	12870
10	[10] CAWI	967
-1	[-1] No Answer	0
-2	[-2] Does not apply	0
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	0
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

This variable indicates the household's survey result. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

\$hergs - Household Survey Result, One Digit [generic]

1	[1] Part. Success., Without Comments	2253
2	[2] Part. Success., Not Next Wave	1
3	[3] Part. Success. Next Wave On.No.Accnt	63
11	[11] Comp. Success. Without Comments	14162
12	[12] Comp. Success. Not Next Wave	15
13	[13] Comp. Success. Next Wave On.No.Accnt.	118
14	[14] Comp. Success. At Least 1 Refusal HH	1210
19	[19] Comp. Success. Void Due To Value L	0
21	[21] Unsucc. Old And Sick	0
22	[22] Unsucc. At End Unreachable	2
23	[23] Unsucc. Abroad	9
24	[24] Unsucc. Hospital	47
25	[25] Unsucc. Unreachable	319
26	[26] Unsucc. Quest. Cant Be Processed	0
27	[27] Unsucc. 2X Missing	23
	(15 rows omitted)	2860
82	[82] Could Not Locate Always Traveling	0
83	[83] Could Not Locate Living With Friends	0
84	[84] Could Not Locate HH. in Addresses	12
85	[85] Could Not Locate New Address	43
89	[89] Could Not Locate Other Unclear Cases	0
90	[90] HH Not Found	132
92	[92] Address Not Deliverable (Post Research)	0
98	[98] Neutral Drop Out	0
99	[99] HH Not Processed, Under Income Lev	0
-1	[-1] No Answer	0
-2	[-2] Does not apply	0
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	0
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

This variable indicates the household's survey result in one digit coding. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

\$hstu - Household Steps Of Survey [generic]

0	[0] No Interview	157
1	[1] Processed 1 Stage	20229
2	[2] Processed 2 Stage	853
3	[3] Processed 3 Stage	30
-1	[-1] No Answer	0
-2	[-2] Does not apply	0
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0

-5 [-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire
 6 [-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering

Processing Stage. This variable indicates to which stage the household's survey result (\$hergs) refers to. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

bghergs_erw - [Refug]Erweitertes Bearbeitungsergebnis Schluss

1	[1] Part. Success., Without Comments	1065
3	[3] Part. Success., Next Wave Under No Circumstances Willing	45
4	[4] Part. Success., although Adress Locked (Overlap with Bruttoreduc.)	16
11	[11] Success, Without Comments for Following Wave	2111
13	[13] Success, Next Wave Under No Circumstances Willing	49
21	[21] Unsuccess., Old and Sick	0
23	[23] Unsuccess., Foreign: In Country of Origin for Longer Period	0
24	[24] Unsucc. Hospital	0
25	[25] Unsuccess., Not Reachable During Time of Fieldwork	0
26	[26] Unsuccess., Mental Incapacity / Questionnaire not evaluable	0
32	[32] Not Ready, No Time	0
39	[39] Not Ready, Other Unclear Cases	16
40	[40] Final Refusal	0
46	[46] No Longer Capable to Participate (e.g. Nursing Case)	0
47	[47] Language Difficulties	0
	(13 rows omitted)	34
903	[903] Disappeared	0
981	[981] Anchor Person Not in Target Group	0
982	[982] Address Locked (Initial Reception)	0
983	[983] Multiple Anchor Persons in Joint Household	0
984	[984] Adress Locked (Bruttoreduction)	0
985	[985] Address Locked, Failure Message from interview (Overlap with Bruttoreduc)	0
986	[986] Accommodation Does Not Exist Anymore	0
987	[987] Adress Locked (Anchor Children Born 1998)	0
988	[988] Unaccompanied Minor Refugee	0
-1	[-1] No Answer	0
-2	[-2] Does not apply	0
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	17933
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

bghfort - Fortschreibung von Daten

1	[1] Update of Personal Data Necessary	423
-1	[-1] No Answer	0
-2	[-2] Does not apply	14248
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	6598
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

10 Incentive and Additional Information

\$inckontr - Incentivized Households [generic]

1	[1] Experimental Group (Cash)	627
2	[2] Control Group	575
4	[4] Incentives Changer (From Lottery Ticket to Cash)	15
-1	[-1] No Answer	0
-2	[-2] Does not apply	10977
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	9075
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

This variable indicates whether the household was choosen to take part in an experimental setting. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]

\$hand - Special Case, See Address Log [generic]

1	[1] Special Feature, Access	0
6	[6] Chg, New SAMPREG	0
7	[7] Chg, Old SAMPREG	0
9	[9] Chgnow SAMPREG	0
-1	[-1] No Answer	0
-2	[-2] Does not apply	21269
-3	[-3] Answer improbable	0
-4	[-4] Inadmissible multiple response	0
-5	[-5] Not included in this version of the questionnaire	0
-6	[-6] Version of questionnaire with modified filtering	0

Additional information on the accessibility of the household are saved in this variable. [This information can be related to a specific variable and is not necessarily generic.]